
 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 

AGENDA OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
May 23, 2018 

11:30 a.m. 
TO BE HELD AT: 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OFFICES 
2931 Mission Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

 
1. Roll Call 
  
2. Consideration of Late Additions and Changes to the Agenda 

 
3. Consent Agenda 

 
A. Approval of Minutes of Special Meeting held April 30, 2018 

 
B. 415 Natural Bridges Drive Santa Cruz – Vacant lot 

 
C. Accept Letter to Congressman Panetta regarding Proposed Rent Reform Legislation  
 
D. Application for Mainstream Voucher Program 
 
E. Application for Family Unification Program 

 
4. Oral Communications (All oral communications must be directed to an item not listed on this agenda 

and must be within the jurisdiction of the Board.  Presentations must not exceed three minutes in length.  
The Board will not take action or respond immediately to any Oral Communication presented, but may 
choose to follow up at a later time or schedule item for a subsequent agenda.  The Board may limit the total 
amount of time allowed for oral communication).  Anyone addressing the Board of Commissioners is asked 
to complete a card and leave it with the Board secretary so that their names may be accurately recorded in 
the Minutes. 

 
5. Unfinished Business 

 
6. New Business 

 
A. File Reviews 

 
B. Draft Agency Budget for FY 2018-2019 
 
C. County of Santa Cruz Housing Services Contract   
 
D. Low Income Public Housing Utility Consumption   

 
7. Written Correspondence 
   
8. Report of Executive Director 

 
9. Reports from Board Members 
 (Board members may report on meetings attended, if any, or other items of interest.) 
 
10. Closed Session 



 (The Board will recess to discuss those items listed, if any.) 
 
11. Report on Closed Session 

 
12. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*The Housing Authority complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  If you are a person with disabilities 
and you require special assistance in order to participate, please contact the Board secretary at 831-454-9455, ext. 
201 at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting in order to make arrangements.  Persons with disabilities may 
request a copy of the agenda in an alternative format. 
Spanish language translation is available on an as needed basis.  Please make arrangements 72 hours in advance by 
contacting the Housing Authority at 831-454-9455, ext. 280. 

Agendas can be obtained from the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz Administration Department.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL 
MEETING APRIL 30, 2018 AT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
CRUZ, 2931 MISSION STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060 

  
 

 

1 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1  Roll Call   
Chairperson Berg called the meeting to order at 11:35 a.m. Members present Commissioners Berg, 
Brunner, Eligio, Garcia, Schiffrin and Schmale 
 
Members Absent 
Commissioner Pomerantz 
 
Staff Present 
Jennifer Panetta, Aaron Pomeroy and Courtney Byrd of the Housing Authority 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 2      Consideration of Late Additions or Changes to the Agenda 
 
Secretary Panetta informed the Board that there are no changes to this agenda but the agenda items 
regarding the file review process and the Low Income Public Housing (LIPH) utilities study have been 
postponed until the May Regular meeting. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 Consent Agenda  
 
Chairperson Berg asked for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
Commissioner Garcia moved for approval of the Consent Agenda; Commissioner Schiffrin seconded the 
motion and it was passed by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners Berg, Brunner, Eligio, Garcia, Schiffrin and Schmale 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  Commissioner Pomerantz 
ABSTAIN:  None 
 
Agenda Item 3A.  Approved Minutes of the Regular Meeting held March 28, 2018 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 4       Oral Communications 
None. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 5       Unfinished Business 
None. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6A        Review of Draft Agency Budget for FY 2018-2019 
 
Secretary Panetta introduced Finance Director Aaron Pomeroy who presented the Commissioners with 
the Draft Agency Budget for FY 2018-2019. As a whole, it generates a net surplus of $23,491 compared 
to $81,788 for the prior budget year. This budget was prepared using a 77 % pro-ration level for HUD’s 
Section 8 administrative fee rates which is the same proration level used for the current budget year. A 
discussion followed. This budget will be brought before the Board at the May 23, 2018 Regular Meeting 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL 
MEETING APRIL 30, 2018 AT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
CRUZ, 2931 MISSION STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060 

  
 

 

2 

for further discussion and Board approval. Secretary Panetta and the Commissioners thanked Finance 
Director Pomeroy and his staff for their work on the FY 2018-2019 budget. 
 
Finance Director Pomeroy exited the meeting at 12:31 p.m. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6B Disaster Relief Funding for Levee Repairs at Buena Vista 

Migrant Center 
 
Secretary Panetta reminded the Board of the atmospheric river that occurred in February 2017 that  
compromised the integrity of the levees at the Buena Vista Migrant Center waste water facilities. Shortly  
thereafter, the Federal Emergency Management Agency announced that federal disaster assistance was  
available to the State of California for local recovery efforts in areas affected by the severe winter  
storms. The Housing Authority applied for disaster assistance funding to address the levee damage. This  
is before the Board of Commissioners to adopt the resolution authorizing designated staff to act as  
agents on behalf of the Housing Authority for matters related to disaster relief assistance through  
California’s Office of Emergency Services. A discussion followed. 
 
Commissioner Garcia moved to adopt Resolution No. 2018-05; Commissioner Schmale seconded the 
motion and it was passed by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners Berg, Brunner, Eligio, Garcia, Schiffrin and Schmale 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  Commissioner Pomerantz 
ABSTAIN:  None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6C  Waiting List Opening – Best Practices 
 
Secretary Panetta informed the Board that as a result of the major waiting list refresh conducted in 2017, 
as well as a high volume of vouchers issued in the past year, our waiting lists have been reduced 
significantly. It is likely that the Housing Authority will need to open some or all of our waiting lists 
within the next year.  Staff has been reviewing the waiting list practices of other agencies, to begin to 
develop a set of recommendations regarding how we will open our lists.  The Board discussed best 
practices for opening the waiting list including notification, waiting list opening period, method of 
application, acceptance of finite vs. unlimited applicants, sequence of the list and opening the LIPH lists 
by bedroom size. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7  Written Correspondence 
None. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 8  Report of Executive Director 
 
Executive Director Panetta informed the Board that the monthly financials are not currently available as 
the Finance Department has been focused on completing the draft budget. Next month’s packet will 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL 
MEETING APRIL 30, 2018 AT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
CRUZ, 2931 MISSION STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060 

  
 

 

3 

include monthly financial reports through April 2018. 
 
Executive Director Panetta updated the Board on both the opening of the Buena Vista Migrant Center 
and 50-mile rule legislation. 
 
Executive Director Panetta informed the Board that she recently attended a presentation of the results of 
the Farmworker Housing Study of the Pajaro and Salinas Valleys. When the report is finalized, 
Executive Director Panetta will send the Board a copy. 
 
Executive Director Panetta informed the Board that she has been in touch with the Vice Chancellor of 
UCSC regarding providing the Housing Authority with an annual FMR study. The Board directed 
Executive Director Panetta to write a letter to the county and 4 cities to see if they would be interested in 
contributing to the FMR study if it was broken down by jurisdictions. 
 
Executive Director Panetta informed the Board that the Homeless Action Partnership and the Homeless 
Services Center have launched Smart Path, a new coordinated assessment and referral system. 
 
Executive Director Panetta gave the Board a legislative update based on the information she received at 
the annual NAHRO legislative conference in Washington DC. The Board of Commissioners directed 
Executive Director Panetta to draft a letter to Congressman Jimmy Panetta providing feedback on the 
proposed legislation regarding rent reform. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 9  Reports from Board Members 
 
Commissioner Garcia informed the Board that she was a speaker at an event sponsored by Affordable 
Housing Santa Cruz County.  There are five community meetings on a draft proposal for a $250 million 
dollar housing bond. The Board discussed this bond. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 10  Closed Session 
None. 
   
AGENDA ITEM NO.11              Report on Closed Session 
None. 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 12   Adjournment 
 
The Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 2:05p.m. 
 
I hereby certify that these minutes were approved by the Housing Authority of the County of  
Santa Cruz, on the Twenty Third day of May, 2018. 
  
  



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL 
MEETING APRIL 30, 2018 AT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
CRUZ, 2931 MISSION STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060 

  
 

 

4 

 _______________________   
     
Chairperson of the Authority 

ATTEST: ____________________ 
 
Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
18:mins04 



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
MEETING DATE: May 23, 2018     ITEM NUMBER:     3B 
 
        FROM:   Executive Director 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: 415 Natural Bridges Drive Santa Cruz – Vacant lot  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive Information for Future Discussion  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
 
In November of 2013, the Housing Authority purchased 415 Natural Bridges Drive, Santa Cruz 
for $630,000.  The property contained a very old and poorly maintained single family home. In 
July of 2015, the home was razed due to its being inhabitable. The property is directly adjacent 
to, and backs up against, the back parking lot of the Housing Authority Mission Street office 
building which the Housing Authority owns.  See attached map.    
 
The property (415 Natural Bridges Drive) is zoned RL Multi Res Low and the General Plan 
Designation is LM – Low Med Res (10.1 to 20 units per acre).  The site is listed as 12,153 sqft.  
Based on the current zoning designation, the City of Santa Cruz Building Department informed 
Housing Authority staff that 3-6 units (depending on size of units) could be built on the property.   
HA staff also reached out to Carol Berg of the City of Santa Cruz, who is involved in the 
administration of the density bonus allowance for the City.  Ms. Berg indicated that we could 
possibly obtain an additional 2 units if the project was developed with a low-income rental 
restriction.  Based on the current zoning and possible density bonus, it may be possible to 
develop up to 8 units on the site.   
 
HA staff is also collecting information regarding the feasibility of doing a minor land division to 
expand the lot size of the Natural Bridges property.  This could potentially be accomplished by 
taking a portion of land from the Mission Street office building parking lot that butts up to 415 
Natural Bridges.  HA staff will be seeking input from a local land use planner and architect to see 
what opportunities exist if the Natural Bridges lot was expanded and what impact that would 
have on the Mission Street office building. 
 
At this time, this information is provided by request of the Board, for informational purposes 
only.  HA staff will provide further information to the Board about the potential for development 
of the lot on Natural Bridges later this summer, as we begin a conversation about the role of our 
Agency in affordable housing development.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive Information for Future Discussion  
 
 
 
 

  



 

Su

MarkF
Text Box
  PCS  

MarkF
Text Box
Fairfield Inn 

MarkF
Text Box
        Housing Authority           Office 

MarkF
Text Box
Wrigley Business             Park 

MarkF
Text Box
            UCSC Property 

MarkF
Text Box
Office Buildings 

MarkF
Polygon

MarkF
Text Box
415 Natural Bridges Dr



  
2931 Miss ion St reet  l  Santa Cruz,  Cal i f orn ia 95060 l  Tel :  831.454.9455 l  Fax:  831.469.3712 l  www.hacosantacruz.org  

Also serv ing Hol l i s ter  and San Juan Baut is ta l  Tel :  831.637.0487 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: Carol Berg, Chairperson; Sonja Brunner, Vice-Chairperson 
Andy Schiffrin, Ligaya Eligio, Rebecca Garcia, Richard Schmale, Ron Pomerantz  

Jennifer Panetta, Executive Director 
 

 

May 23, 2018 
 
Congressman Jimmy Panetta 
228 Cannon House Office Building 
Washington, DC 20515 
 
Re:  Making Affordable Housing Work Act of 2018 
 
Dear Congressman Panetta: 
 
The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz wishes to share the following feedback about the draft rent 
reform legislation known as the Making Affordable Housing Work Act of 2018.  The Act includes some 
proposed policy directions and rent reform initiatives for the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher and Low 
Income Public Housing Programs, including increased tenant contributions (from 30% to 35% of income) for 
non-exempt families, mandatory minimum rents, potential work requirements, and a reduction in the frequency 
of income certifications from annually to triennially. 
 
The Housing Authority welcomes conversation about reforms for federal housing programs, but we are 
concerned about program reforms that increase rent contributions for the low-income families that we serve. 
Many families in rental assistance programs already struggle to pay their existing portions of rent, but the 
proposed increases to tenant rent would disproportionately impact the most vulnerable families on our 
programs, the majority of whom have incomes below the poverty level.  In the Section 8 Housing Choice 
Voucher Program, most families would not be eligible for work requirements (as they are elderly or disabled) 
and three quarters of non-elderly, non-disabled households are already working.  Some of the proposed 
program reforms, such as eliminating the child care deduction, could work against the purported goal of 
supporting work.  Finally, while the decrease in annual income re-examinations would be a welcome reduction 
in administrative burden for housing authorities, most other proposed changes add unnecessary levels of 
complexity and increase the administrative burden at a time when we are also experiencing decreases in 
administrative funding.    
 
We strongly urge Congress to reject the current proposal to reduce housing benefits by imposing rent increases 
and work requirements.  Instead, we encourage Congress to enact proven solutions to help struggling families 
earn more and get ahead, such as renewed investment in the Family Self Sufficiency Program.  Finally, if 
program and rent reforms are introduced, we encourage Congress to provide housing authorities with the 
discretion to make local choices about which reforms would be helpful in addressing local needs and priorities, 
rather than imposing a “one size fits all” approach that all agencies would be mandated to conform to.    
 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
Jennifer Panetta, Executive Director 
 



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
MEETING DATE: May 23, 2018    ITEM NUMBER:     3D 
 
        FROM:      Executive Director   
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT:  Application for Mainstream Voucher Program 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2018-06: Resolution Authorizing 
Submission of an Application to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) and Authorizing Execution of an Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) for up to 179 
Vouchers Under the Housing Choice Voucher Program to Provide Rental Assistance for 
Families with Non-elderly Persons with Disabilities (Mainstream Voucher Program)  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
 
The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has made funding available for new 
Section 811 Housing Choice Vouchers (known as Mainstream Vouchers) to assist non-elderly 
persons with disabilities, through both the Omnibus Appropriations Act of 2017 and of 2018. 
The Notification of Funding Availability (NOFA) seeks Public Housing Authorities (PHA) that 
focus funds on assisting non-elderly persons with disabilities who are transitioning out of 
institutions, at serious risk of institutionalization, homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless. In 
addition, HUD seeks PHAs that formalize partnerships with State Medicaid Agencies and 
various health and human service partner agencies or organizations. 
 
The last NOFA for the Mainstream Voucher Program was issued in 2005. The voucher recipients 
for this NOFA are any household that includes one or more non-elderly persons with disabilities, 
instead of only those families with a head, co-head, or spouse that is a person with disabilities.  
 
The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz has been funded for this program in the past 
and currently has waiting list preferences for both Medicaid Waiver and for Disabled and 
Transitioning from Institutions (DTI), to assist persons with disabilities gain and maintain 
housing in the community. Both the Medicaid Waiver and DTI rely on strong, established 
partnerships with health and human service agencies. This application is for up to 179 vouchers.  
 

 RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2018-06: Resolution Authorizing Submission 
of an Application to HUD and Authorizing Execution of an ACC for up to 179 Vouchers Under 
the HCV Program to Provide Rental Assistance for Families with Non-elderly Persons with 
Disabilities (Mainstream Voucher Program)  
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
 



BEFORE THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY 
OF SANTA CRUZ, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-06 

 
On the motion of Commissioner 
Duly seconded by Commissioner 

The Following Resolution is Adopted: 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION TO THE U.S. 
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD) AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN ANNUAL CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRACT (ACC) 
FOR UP TO 179 VOUCHERS UNDER THE HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM 
TO PROVIDE RENTAL ASSISTANCE TO DISABLED FAMILIES UNDER THE 
MAINSTREAM VOUCHER PROGRAM 

 
 WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has issued the 
Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFA) FR-6100-N-43 for 2017 Mainstream Voucher Program for 
Public Housing Authorities to apply for vouchers to assist non-elderly persons with disabilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is an urgent need in the County for more vouchers of every kind; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is an urgent need in the County for more units to specifically assist persons 
with disabilities; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz is the designated Public Housing 
Agency (PHA) for said County. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive Director of the Housing Authority 
of the County of Santa Cruz is authorized to submit an application to HUD for up to 179 mainstream 
program vouchers. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the County of 
Santa Cruz, State of California, this Twenty Eighth of May 23, 2018 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Chairperson of the Authority 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Secretary of the Authority 
 



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
MEETING DATE: May 23, 2018    ITEM NUMBER:     3E 
 
        FROM:      Executive Director   
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT:  Application for Family Unification Program  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2018-07: Resolution Authorizing Submission 
of an Application to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and 
Authorizing Execution of an Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) for up to 100 Vouchers 
Under the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program to Provide Rental Assistance for Families 
and Youth Under the Family Unification Program (FUP) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
 
The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has made funding available for 
fiscal years 2017 and 2018 for the Family Unification Program (FUP). FUP is a program under 
which housing assistance is provided under the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program in 
partnership with the Public Child Welfare Agency.  
 
The voucher recipients for this Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) are families for whom 
the lack of adequate housing is a primary factor in the imminent placement of the family’s child 
or children in out-of-home care; or the delay of discharge to the family from out-of-home care; 
and Youth, at least 18 and not more than 24 years of age, who left foster care or will leave foster 
care within 90 days, and are homelessness or at risk of homelessness.  
 
The NOFA establishes a maximum award threshold based on current PHA HCV program size. 
The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz meets the maximum threshold of 2,000 or 
more HCVs and can apply for the maximum of 100 FUP vouchers. The Housing Authority has 
123 FUP vouchers in partnership with the County of Santa Cruz Human Services Department, 
Family and Children’s Services Division. This application is for up to 100 additional vouchers.  
 

 RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2018-07: Resolution Authorizing Submission 
of an Application to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and 
Authorizing Execution of an Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) for up to 100 Vouchers 
Under the Housing Choice Voucher Program to Provide Rental Assistance for Families and 
Youth with the Family Unification Program. 

 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
 



BEFORE THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY 
OF SANTA CRUZ, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-07 

 
On the motion of Commissioner 
Duly seconded by Commissioner 

The Following Resolution is Adopted: 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION TO THE U.S. 
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD) AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN ANNUAL CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRACT 
(ACC) FOR UP TO 100 VOUCHERS UNDER THE HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER 
PROGRAM TO PROVIDE RENTAL ASSISTANCE TO FAMILIES AND YOUTH 
UNDER THE FAMILY UNIFICATION PROGRAM (FUP)

 
 WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has issued the 
Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFA) FR-6100-N-41 for Fiscal Years 2017 and 2018 Family 
Unification Program for Public Housing Authorities to apply in partnership with Public Child 
Welfare Agencies for vouchers to assist families for whom the lack of adequate housing is primary 
factor in immanent placement of the family’s child or children in out-of-home care; and youth 
between 18 -24 years old, who left foster care or will leave within 90- days and homeless or at risk of 
becoming homeless; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is an urgent need in the County for more vouchers of every kind; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz is the designated Public 
Housing Agency (PHA) for said County. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive Director of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Santa Cruz is authorized to submit an application to HUD for up to 100 
vouchers under the Family Unification Program. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the County of 
Santa Cruz, State of California, this Twenty Eighth of May 23, 2018 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Chairperson of the Authority 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Secretary of the Authority 
 



 AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
MEETING DATE: May 23, 2018  ITEM NUMBER:  6A 
 
       FROM:      Executive Director   
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: File Review Process  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Proposed Changes to the File Review Process  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
 
The Housing Authority administers publicly funded housing and rental assistance programs.  As 
responsible stewards of public funds, we are obligated to make efforts to detect and prevent 
fraud, waste, and abuse in our programs and to ensure the integrity of our programs.  If staff 
determine that there is enough evidence to suggest that program violations or fraud have 
occurred, we set up a “file review appointment”.  At the meeting we present information we have 
about potential program violations, we ask additional questions, and we provide an opportunity 
for participants to comment, respond, or explain why the facts we presented are incorrect or have 
been misunderstood.    
 
In May 2017 California Rural Legal Assistance (CRLA) expressed concerns about the Housing 
Authority’s file review process.  The primary concerns expressed by CRLA included the 
appointment letter, which required attendance at a meeting and did not state the purpose of the 
meeting, as well as interviewing techniques that CRLA stated were threatening and intimidating, 
and that coerced voucher holders to relinquish their rental assistance to avoid owing the Housing 
Authority money for assistance overpaid on their behalf. 
 
In response to these concerns, the Housing Authority made changes to the file review process in 
May 2017, including recording the interviews, and no longer accepting a decision at the meeting 
from participants who wanted to relinquish assistance.  This way, anyone who wanted to 
voluntarily terminate their assistance would be required to send us a letter rather than making 
such an important decision during a stressful situation.  Additionally, the Housing Authority 
agreed that appointment letters would state the purpose of the meeting. 
 
During the public comment period for the Administrative Plan, CRLA expressed continued 
concern about the file review process.  The file review process is not included in the 
Administrative Plan, so the Board instructed staff to bring the item back during a subsequent 
meeting. 
 
Since the March Board meeting, Housing Authority staff has listened in on many hours of file 
review recordings, reviewed the appointment letter, and has met with CRLA to further discuss 
their concerns and to receive feedback on proposed changes.  Based on this information and 
these discussions, Housing Authority staff propose the following changes to the file review 
process. 



 
File Review Process - Proposed Changes 
 
1. Appointment Letter – Housing Authority staff acknowledge that appointment letters sent 

since May 2017 have not consistently included a reason for the meeting, as they should have.  
The letter has been updated so that if a staff member omits the “reason” parameter from this 
automated letter, the system will generate an error message in red font.  Additionally, a 
department director will review all file review appointment letters until we have confidence 
that the letters consistently include a reason for the appointment.  The wording in the letter 
will also be modified.  The sentence “Failure to attend is grounds for termination.” will be 
removed from the letter. 
 

2. Consent to Record – While appointments have been recorded since May 2017 with the 
consent of the program participant, the conversation resulting in verbal consent had been 
occurring prior the beginning of the recording.  Staff proposes that future appointments will 
begin with the following script.  
 

Before recording: 
 
Hello, my name is _____________.  Before we begin, I would like to get your permission 
to record this interview.  This interview has been scheduled to discuss 
_____________.  During this interview, you will be asked personal questions.  It is 
important to provide true and complete statements.  You should be aware that you can be 
held legally responsible for giving us false information.  The information contained in 
this recording could be used against you should we pursue termination from the 
program.  Do I have your permission to record this interview?   

 
If yes, press record and repeat to get consent on tape. 
 
My name is _____________.  I am here with _____________.  This interview has been 
scheduled to discuss _____________.  During this interview, you will be asked personal 
questions.  It is important to provide true and complete statements.  You should be aware 
that you can be held legally responsible for giving us false information.  The information 
contained in this recording could be used against you should we pursue termination from 
the program.  Can you confirm that you have authorized the Housing Authority of the 
County of Santa Cruz to record this interview?   
 
If they decline to have the interview recorded. 
 
My name is _____________.  I am here with _____________.  _____________ has 
declined to have the interview recorded. 
 

3. Staff Conducting Appointments – The Housing Authority proposes to temporarily assign all 
file review appointments to supervisory level staff in the Eligibility Department. 

 
 
 

 



4. Interviewing Parameters – The Housing Authority proposes to make the following changes to 
the file review meetings. 

 
a. Housing Authority staff will not state intent to terminate assistance during a file 

review appointment.  This decision is made at some point after the meeting. 
 

b. Housing Authority staff will not bring up the possibility of any tenant relinquishing 
their rental assistance.  If a tenant makes this suggestion, staff will explain that we 
cannot accept this decision during the course of the meeting, and that the tenant 
should fully consider the impact of this decision and inform the Housing Authority in 
writing if they want to voluntarily terminate assistance.  Staff will verbally explain 
that any tenant voluntarily giving up assistance is waiving their right to a hearing to 
appeal the termination.  

 
c. If a program participant does inform the Housing Authority, in writing, that they wish 

to relinquish their assistance, staff will send the participant a letter in response to this 
request.  The letter will state that any participant voluntarily giving up assistance is 
waiving their right to a hearing to appeal the termination.  Additionally, the letter will 
include a grace period, during which the participant may change their mind and 
rescind their voluntary relinquishment of assistance.   
 

Based on conversations with CRLA, Housing Authority staff believes that the items proposed 
above represent meaningful changes to the file review process, that adequately address all of 
CRLA’s concerns except one.  CRLA has expressed the opinion that file review appointments 
should be optional, rather than mandatory.  However, Housing Authority staff feels that requiring 
attendance at file review appointments is a reasonable, necessary, and effective way to collect 
information.  The Housing Authority has an obligation to detect and prevent fraud, waste, abuse 
in our programs, and we have the discretion to determine how we collect that information, which 
can include requiring attendance at an in person meeting.  In-person interviews are widely 
considered to be a best practice when investigating possible program violations or fraud, and are 
a helpful tool in our efforts to maintain integrity within our publicly funded programs.     
 
Finally, staff wishes to thank CRLA for raising concerns about the file review process initially in 
May 2017, and again in March of this year, as well as for a productive dialogue over the past few 
months regarding proposed changes to the process.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Adopt Staff Proposed Changes to the File Review Process 

 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
 



1





3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



 AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
MEETING DATE: May 23, 2018   ITEM NUMBER:  6B 
 

      FROM:  Executive Director   
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT:  Draft Agency Budget for FY 2018-2019 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Draft Agency Budget for FY 2018-2019 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
 
At the April 30th meeting, Housing Authority staff presented the draft agency budget for FY 
2018-19.    Due to the combination of increased pension costs, office relocation expenditures and 
other factors, the agency-wide budget projected a modest surplus of only $23,491.  Therefore, a 
decision regarding a staff COLA will be deferred until the Fall, when we have greater certainty 
regarding the Section 8 administrative fee proration level, and can evaluate our progress towards 
lease up goals.  At that time, we will also have more information to assess how actual income 
and expenses are tracking compared to projections during the new fiscal year.  
 
Based on commissioner feedback during the last meeting, future budgets will include formatting 
changes, including projected current year figures (based on year to date information) for 
revenues, expenses and surplus or deficit totals.  Additionally, the budget will include a column 
indicating the percentage change from the current budget to the proposed budget for each line 
item.    
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approve the Draft Agency Budget for FY 2018-2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 



 AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
MEETING DATE: May 23, 2018  ITEM NUMBER:  6C 
 
       FROM:      Executive Director   
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: County of Santa Cruz Housing Services Contract   
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize Execution of Amendment to County of Santa Cruz 
Housing Services Contract, Approve Housing Services Work Plan for 2018/2019, Approve 
Establishment an Affordable Housing Preservation Revolving Loan Fund.  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
 
In 2011, the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz entered into a multi-year contract 
with the County of Santa Cruz to provide information and services related to housing and 
affordable housing programs and activities.  Each year, the County develops an annual work 
plan, comprising of activities that will be funded through this grant.  The annual work plan is 
approved by the Board of Supervisors.   
 
The current Housing Services contract expires on June 30, 2018, with approximately 3.1 million 
dollars left in the contract.  At this time, the County is proposing to extend the term of the 
contract for an additional 4 years, establish an annual work plan for the upcoming 2018/19 fiscal 
year, including the establishment of a new affordable housing preservation revolving loan fund. 
 
Attached for your review is a letter from the County Planning Director Kathy Malloy, along with 
a copy of the proposed amendment, the proposed annual work plan for 2018/2019, and an 
agreement to establish and administer an affordable housing preservation fund for the County of 
Santa Cruz.     
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize Execution of Amendment to County of Santa Cruz 
Housing Services Contract, Approve Housing Services Work Plan for 2018/2019, Approve 
Establishment an Affordable Housing Preservation Revolving Loan Fund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
 







Attachment 1 

S:\Housing\Admin\Contracts\Housing Authority-Housing Services 11-16\Contract\Amendment to HACo Agreement.docx 

AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

The parties hereto agree to amend that certain Agreement dated June 22, 2011, by 

and between the COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ and THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF 

THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, as subsequently amended by Amendment No. 1 and 

Amendment No. 2, as follows:  

1. The total expenditures as set forth in Section 2 of the Agreement shall not 

exceed ______________. 

2. Exhibit A to the Agreement shall be revised as follows: 

a. Delete Paragraph 4, Administration of Affordable Housing Preservation 

Program. 

b. Add at the end of Paragraph 5, the following: “CONTRACTOR shall 

require, as a condition of any third party contract to implement 

COUNTY affordable housing activities, that any such third party 

contractor indemnify the COUNTY to the same extent as the 

CONTRACTOR under Section 6 of this Agreement and name the 

COUNTY as an additional insured under its policies of insurance, and 

such contract shall designate the COUNTY as a third party beneficiary 

with rights of enforcement.  Third party contracts shall be subject to the 

review and approval of the COUNTY.” 

3. Section 4 of the Agreement is hereby replaced, in its entirety, as follows:  

“4.  TERM.  The term of this Contract shall be June 22, 2011 through June 30, 2022.” 

4. Section 6 of the Agreement is hereby replaced, in its entirety, as follows: 

“6. INDEMNIFICATION FOR DAMAGES, TAXES AND CONTRIBUTIONS. 



Attachment 1 

S:\Housing\Admin\Contracts\Housing Authority-Housing Services 11-16\Contract\Amendment to HACo Agreement.docx 

To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, CONTRACTOR shall exonerate, 

indemnify, defend, and hold harmless COUNTY (which for the purpose of paragraphs 6 

and 7 shall include, without limitation, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers) from 

and against: 

 A. Any and all claims, demands, losses, damages, defense costs, or liability of 

any kind or nature which COUNTY may sustain or incur or which may be imposed upon 

it as a result of, arising out of, or in any manner connected with the CONTRACTOR’S 

performance under the terms of this Contract, excepting any liability arising out of the sole 

negligence of the COUNTY.  Such indemnification includes any damage to the person(s), 

or property(ies) of CONTRACTOR and third persons. 

B. Any and all Federal, State and Local taxes, charges, fees, or contributions 

required to be paid with respect to CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR’S officers, 

employees and agents engaged in the performance of this Contract (including, without 

limitation, unemployment insurance, social security and payroll tax withholding).” 

6.  Section 7 of the Agreement is hereby replaced, in its entirety, as follows: 

“7. INSURANCE.    CONTRACTOR, at its sole cost and expense, for the full term of 

this Contract (and any extensions thereof), shall obtain and maintain, at minimum, 

compliance with all of the following insurance coverage(s) and requirements.  Such 

insurance coverage shall be primary coverage as respects COUNTY and any insurance or 

self-insurance maintained by COUNTY shall be considered in excess of 

CONTRACTOR’S insurance coverage and shall not contribute to it.  If CONTRACTOR 

normally carries insurance in an amount greater than the minimum amount required by the 

COUNTY for this Contract, that greater amount shall become the minimum required 



Attachment 1 

S:\Housing\Admin\Contracts\Housing Authority-Housing Services 11-16\Contract\Amendment to HACo Agreement.docx 

amount of insurance for purposes of this Contract.  Therefore, CONTRACTOR hereby 

acknowledges and agrees that any and all insurances carried by it shall be deemed liability 

coverage for any and all actions it performs in connection with this Contract.  Insurance is 

to be obtained from insurers reasonably acceptable to the COUNTY. 

 If CONTRACTOR utilizes one or more subcontractors in the performance of this 

Contract, CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain Contractor’s Protective Liability 

insurance as to each subcontractor or otherwise provide evidence of insurance coverage 

from each subcontractor equivalent to that required of CONTRACTOR in this contract, 

unless CONTRACTOR and COUNTY both initial here          ____ / ____. 

 A. Types of Insurance and Minimum Limits 

  (1) Worker’s Compensation in the minimum statutorily required 

coverage amounts.  This insurance coverage shall be required unless the CONTRACTOR 

has no employees and certifies to this fact by initialing here ________. 

  (2) Automobile Liability Insurance for each of CONTRACTOR’S 

vehicles used in the performance of this Contract, including owned, non-owned (e.g. 

owned by CONTRACTOR’S employees), leased or hired vehicles, in the minimum 

amount of $500,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property 

damage.  This insurance coverage is required unless the CONTRACTOR does not drive a 

vehicle in conjunction with any part of the performance of this Contract and 

CONTRACTOR and COUNTY both certify to this fact by initialing here           / ____. 

  (3) Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability Insurance 

coverage at least as broad as the most recent ISO Form CG 00 01 with a minimum limit of 

$1,000,000 per occurrence, and $2,000,000 in the aggregate, including coverage for: (a) 



Attachment 1 

S:\Housing\Admin\Contracts\Housing Authority-Housing Services 11-16\Contract\Amendment to HACo Agreement.docx 

products and completed operations, (b) bodily and personal injury, (c) broad form property 

damage, (d) contractual liability, and (e) cross-liability. 

  (4) Professional Liability Insurance in the minimum amount of 

$______________ 

combined single limit, if, and only if, this Subparagraph is initialed by CONTRACTOR 

and COUNTY  

 ____ /____ . 

 B. Other Insurance Provisions 

  (1) If any insurance coverage required in this Contract is provided on a 

“Claims Made” rather than “Occurrence” form, CONTRACTOR agrees that the retroactive 

date thereof shall be no later than the date first written above (in the first paragraph on page 

1), and that it shall maintain the required coverage for a period of three (3) years after the 

expiration of this Contract (hereinafter “post Contract coverage”) and any extensions 

thereof.  CONTRACTOR may maintain the required post Contract coverage by renewal or 

purchase of prior acts or tail coverage.  This provision is contingent upon post Contract 

coverage being both available and reasonably affordable in relation to the coverage 

provided during the term of this Contract.  For purposes of interpreting this requirement, a 

cost not exceeding 100% of the last annual policy premium during the term of this Contract 

in order to purchase prior acts or tail coverage for post Contract coverage shall be deemed 

to be reasonable. 

  (2) All policies of Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability 

Insurance shall be endorsed to cover the County of Santa Cruz, its officials, employees, 

agents and volunteers as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of the work 



Attachment 1 

S:\Housing\Admin\Contracts\Housing Authority-Housing Services 11-16\Contract\Amendment to HACo Agreement.docx 

or operations and activities performed by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, including 

materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.  

Endorsements shall be at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85, or both CG 20 10 10 

01 and CG 20 37 10 01, covering both ongoing operations and products and completed 

operations. 

  (3) All required policies shall be endorsed to contain the following 

clause: 

“This insurance shall not be canceled until after thirty (30) days’ prior written notice (10 

days for nonpayment of premium) has been given to:  

   Santa Cruz County 

   Planning Department 

   Attn:  Fiscal 

   701 Ocean Street, 4th Floor 

   Santa Cruz, CA 95060  

Should CONTRACTOR fail to obtain such an endorsement to any policy required 

hereunder, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to provide at least thirty (30) days’ notice 

(10 days for nonpayment of premium) of cancellation of such policy to the COUNTY as a 

material term of this Contract. 

  (4) CONTRACTOR agrees to provide its insurance broker(s) with a full 

copy of these insurance provisions and provide COUNTY on or before the effective date 

of this Contract with Certificates of Insurance and endorsements for all required coverages.  

However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not 



Attachment 1 

S:\Housing\Admin\Contracts\Housing Authority-Housing Services 11-16\Contract\Amendment to HACo Agreement.docx 

waive the CONTRACTOR’s obligation to provide them.  All Certificates of Insurance and 

endorsements shall be delivered or sent to: 

   Santa Cruz County 

   Planning Department 

   Attn:  Fiscal 

   701 Ocean Street, 4th Floor 

   Santa Cruz, CA 95060  

  (5) CONTRACTOR hereby grants to COUNTY a waiver of any right 

of subrogation which any insurer of said CONTRACTOR may acquire against the 

COUNTY by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance.  CONTRACTOR 

agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of 

subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the COUNTY has 

received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.” 

 

All other provisions of said Agreement shall remain the same. 

 

Dated:                            , 2018   COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 

       By: __________________________ 
              PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
 
         
       CONTRACTOR 

       By: __________________________ 

       Address:  _____________________ 



Attachment 1 

S:\Housing\Admin\Contracts\Housing Authority-Housing Services 11-16\Contract\Amendment to HACo Agreement.docx 

                     _____________________ 

          _______________________

      Telephone: __________________________ 

 

Approved as to form: 

_____________________________ 
County Counsel 
                                          

 

 

 

 

           

 



Attachment 2

FY 18-19

 Year 8 Activity Description

1 Affordable Housing Preservation Program 1,500,000    
Acquisition and related expenses for units at risk of loss of affordability 
covenents 

2 County HAP activities 111,658       Required County match for Homeless Action Partnership Activities

3 All In  Landlord Partnership Landlord Incentive Program 50,000         
Landlord Incentive Program working to expand the pool of landlords 
accepting tenant based rental subsidy

4
All In  Landlord Partnership Partnership Spruce-up Pilot 
Funding

13,385         
Funding for minor repairs to rental units to enable them to meet HUD's 
Housing Quality Standards

6 Measure J Homebuyer Education 6,000           Measure J Homebuyer Education through Watsonville Law Center

7 HOME  TBRA Admin Fees for Program Operators 22,500         Consistent with other HUD programs administrative fees.

8 Affordable Housing  Program Analysis 15,000         
Allowance set aside for consultant assistance with analysis of aspects 
of the Affordable Housing Program.

9 Senior Network Services 7,000           Housing support for seniors at risk of homelessness

10 Housing Program Support 15,000         Emerging eligible housing expenses

11  Housing Program Implementation Fee 150,000       
Support for staffing to implement County housing programs including 
disposition of 2340  Harper Street, development of 17th and Capitola 
Road and other affordable housing activities

12 HACO Admin Fee 20,000         
Not to Exceed amount for administrative expenses, based on time and 
actual expenses for implementation of Year 8 activities

1,910,543    TOTAL

COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz

Housing Services Contract
Contract No. CT13907

Year 8 FY 18-19

Menu of Activities

5/15/2018



Attachment 3 

882/011706-0079 
12240282.2 a05/16/18   
 

REVOLVING LOAN FUND AGREEMENT 

THIS REVOLVING LOAN FUND AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and 
entered into as of June __, 2018 (“Effective Date”), by and between the HOUSING 
AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, a public body, corporate and politic 
(“Housing Authority”) and the COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, a political subdivision of the 
state of California (the “County”). 

R E C I T A L S: 

A. County and Housing Authority are parties to that certain Independent 
Contractor Agreement dated June 22, 2011, pursuant to which Housing Authority agreed 
to administer various affordable housing programs for County’s Planning Department, 
utilizing County housing funds (the “Independent Contractor Agreement”).  

B. On an annual basis, County and Housing Authority prepare and attach to 
the Independent Contractor Agreement a work plan that sets forth the work to be 
completed during the subject fiscal year.  The annual work plan has consistently included 
administration of County’s Affordable Housing Preservation Program (the “Program”), 
the primary purpose of which is to prevent the loss of affordable housing covenants 
through foreclosure. 

C. County and Housing Authority have determined that the Program could be 
better administered through the establishment of a revolving loan fund in the amount of 
One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000) (the “RL Fund”) set aside 
specifically for implementing the Program.  The work plan for fiscal year 2018-2019 
includes the establishment of the RL Fund. 

D. County and Housing Authority now wish to set forth the specific terms and 
conditions pertaining to Housing Authority’s use of the RL Fund to administer the 
Program. 

A G R E E M E N T: 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals, which are 
incorporated herein by this reference, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Establishment of RL Fund.  Within five (5) days after the Effective Date, Housing 
Authority will establish a separate account for the RL Fund and shall deposit in said 
account the full initial balance of the RL Fund of One Million Five Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($1,500,000).  Funds within the RL Fund shall accrue interest at the same rate as 
other funds held in regular Housing Authority financial accounts. 

2. Notice by County; Preservation Plan.  Upon County’s discovery of an affordable 
housing unit at risk of losing its affordability covenants through foreclosure and that is 
suitable for the Program, County shall provide written notice to Housing Authority of 



 

882/011706-0079 
12240282.2 a05/16/18 2  
 

County’s proposed plan, including a schedule of each task, for preserving the unit’s 
affordability restrictions (the “Preservation Plan”).  A Preservation Plan may include, 
without limitation, Housing Authority’s provision of a bridge or down payment assistance 
loan to enable the direct purchase of the unit by an income-qualified household (an 
“Eligible Household”) at an affordable sales price, or Housing Authority’s acquisition of 
the unit for, if necessary, rehabilitation, and resale to an Eligible Household at an 
affordable sales price.    

3. County Obligations.   

3.1 Legal Actions to Prevent Sale.  County shall be responsible for filing any 
legal action necessary to postpone a foreclosure or other sale or action (including a deed 
in lieu of foreclosure) that would result in the loss of affordability covenants on an 
affordable unit. 

3.2 Selection and Verification of Eligible Households.  County shall be 
responsible to select all Eligible Households pursuant to a selection process established 
by County, and to thereafter verify the income of such Eligible Households, all in 
compliance with applicable laws, including applicable fair housing requirements.   

3.3 Condition of Title.  County shall be responsible for working with the 
applicable title company to ensure title to each unit acquired by or sold to an Eligible 
Household is in a condition satisfactory to the Eligible Household.   

3.4 Affordable Housing Documents.  County shall be responsible for preparing 
any affordable housing documents required by County to preserve the housing unit as an 
affordable housing unit (collectively, “Affordable Housing Documents”).   

4. Housing Authority Obligations.   

4.1 Expenditure of Funds; Acquiring and Selling Units.  Housing Authority shall 
be responsible to expend funds from the RL Fund, as necessary to complete each of 
Housing Authority’s tasks set forth in the Preservation Plan, including, without limitation, 
the acquisition of fee title to a unit.  Upon acquisition of a unit, Housing Authority shall 
take commercially reasonable action to secure the unit against unauthorized entry and/or 
vandalism, and shall ensure that the unit is covered by Housing Authority’s property 
insurance.  Housing Authority shall take all action and execute documents necessary to 
sell the unit to the Eligible Household selected and verified by County. 

4.2 Execution of Affordable Housing Documents.  In connection with any sale 
to or acquisition by an Eligible Household, Housing Authority shall arrange for execution 
by the Eligible Household of all Affordable Housing Documents. 

4.3 Deposit of Sale Proceeds; Accounting.  Upon the sale or acquisition of a 
unit to an Eligible Household, Housing Authority shall deposit all net proceeds of the sale 
into the RL Fund.  As used in this Section 4.3, the term “net proceeds of the sale” shall 
mean the actual sale proceeds received by Housing Authority, less all costs incurred by 
Housing Authority staff, including staff costs at the rates set forth in the current County-



 

882/011706-0079 
12240282.2 a05/16/18 3  
 

approved Housing Authority fee schedule, in implementing the Preservation Plan.  Within 
thirty (30) days after any sale or acquisition of an affordable unit to an Eligible Household, 
Housing Authority shall provide a written accounting of the RL Fund, including the detailed 
costs associated with the implementation of the Preservation Plan.  

5. Term; Return of Funds.  This Agreement shall continue until such time as County 
and Housing Authority mutually determine that insufficient funds remain in the RL Fund 
to effectively implement the Program.  Within ten (10) business days after the termination 
of this Agreement, all funds remaining in the RL Fund shall be delivered to County. 

6. Insurance.  During the term of this Agreement, Housing Authority shall procure and 
maintain the following policies of insurance: 

6.1 Types of Insurance and Minimum Limits. 

(a) Worker’s Compensation in the minimum statutorily required 
coverage amounts. 

(b) Automobile Liability Insurance for each of Housing Authority’s 
vehicles used in the performance of this Agreement, including owned, non-owned 
(e.g., owned by Housing Authority’s employees), leased or hired vehicles, in the 
minimum amount of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) combined single 
limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.  This insurance 
coverage shall not be required if vehicle use by Housing Authority is not a material 
part of performance of this Agreement and Housing Authority and County both 
certify to this fact by initialing here _______/_______. 

(c) Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability Insurance coverage 
in the minimum amount of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) combined single limit, 
including coverage for:  (a) bodily injury, (b) personal injury, (c) broad form property 
damage, (d) contractual liability, and (e) cross-liability. 

(d) Insurance against fire, extended coverage, vandalism, and malicious 
mischief, and such other evils, hazards, and risks as now are or may be included 
in the standard “all risk” form in general use in Santa Cruz County, California, with 
the standard form fire insurance coverage in an amount equal to the full actual 
replacement cost of any improvements to be owned by Housing Authority as the 
same may change from time to time.  County shall be a loss payee under such 
policy or policies and such insurance shall contain a replacement cost 
endorsement. 

6.2 Other Insurance Provisions. 

(a) If any insurance coverage required by this Agreement is provided on 
a “Claims Made” rather than “Occurrence” form, Housing Authority agrees to 
maintain the required coverage for a period of three (3) years after the expiration 
or termination of this Agreement (hereinafter, “post agreement coverage”) and any 



 

882/011706-0079 
12240282.2 a05/16/18 4  
 

extensions thereof.  Housing Authority may maintain the required post agreement 
coverage by renewal or purchase of prior acts or tail coverage.   

(b) All required Automobile and Comprehensive or Commercial General 
Liability Insurance shall be endorsed to contain the following clause: 

(c) “The County of Santa Cruz, its officials, officers, members, 
employees, agents, representatives and volunteers are added as additional 
insureds as respects the operations and activities of, or on behalf of, the named 
insureds performed under agreement with the County of Santa Cruz.” 

(d) All required insurance policies shall be endorsed to contain the 
following clause: 

“This insurance shall not be canceled until after thirty (30) days prior 
written notice has been given to: 

County of Santa Cruz  
Planning Director 
701 Ocean Street, Room 418 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060.” 

(e) Housing Authority agrees to provide its insurance broker(s) with a full 
copy of these insurance provisions and provide County on or before the Effective 
Date of this Agreement with Certificates of Insurance for all required coverages.  
All Certificates of Insurance shall be delivered or sent to: 

  County of Santa Cruz  
  Planning Director 
  701 Ocean Street, Room 418 
  Santa Cruz, CA  95060.” 

Housing Authority agrees that the provisions of this Section shall not be construed 
as limiting in any way the extent to which Housing Authority may be held responsible for 
the payment of damages to any persons or property resulting from Housing Authority’s 
activities or the activities of any person or persons for which Housing Authority is 
otherwise responsible. 

6.3 Failure to Procure Insurance.  If Housing Authority fails to procure and 
maintain the above-required insurance despite its availability, then County, in addition to 
any other remedy which County may have hereunder for Housing Authority’s failure to 
procure, maintain, and/or pay for the insurance required herein, may (but without any 
obligation to do so) at any time or from time to time, after thirty (30) days written notice to 
Housing Authority, procure such insurance and pay the premiums therefor, in which event 
Housing Authority shall immediately repay County all sums so paid by County together 
with interest thereon at the maximum legal rate. 



 

882/011706-0079 
12240282.2 a05/16/18 5  
 

7. Default Remedies.  Failure by County or Housing Authority to perform any action 
or covenant required by this Agreement within the time periods provided herein following 
notice and failure to cure as described hereafter, constitutes a “Default” under this 
Agreement.  A party claiming a Default shall give written notice of Default to the other 
party specifying the Default complained of.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in 
this Agreement, the claimant shall not institute any proceeding against the other party, 
and the other party shall not be in Default if such party cures such default within thirty (30) 
days from receipt of such notice, or if the nature of such default is that it cannot reasonably 
be expected to be cured within such thirty (30) day period, if such party, with due 
diligence, commences to cure, correct or remedy such failure or delay within thirty (30) 
days from receipt of such notice, and completes such cure, correction or remedy with 
diligence. 

8. Institution of Legal Actions.  In addition to any other rights or remedies and subject 
to the restrictions otherwise set forth in this Agreement, either party may institute an action 
at law or equity to seek specific performance of the terms of this Agreement, or to cure, 
correct or remedy any Default, or to obtain any other remedy consistent with the purpose 
of this Agreement, but in no event shall either party be entitled to damages of any kind 
from the other party.   

9. Indemnification.   

9.1 By County.  

(a) County shall indemnify and hold Housing Authority and its officers, 
agents, employees and independent contractors free and harmless from any claim 
or liability whatsoever, based or asserted upon any act or omission of County, its 
officers, agents, employees, volunteers subcontractors, or independent 
contractors, for property damage, bodily injury or death, or any other element of 
damage of any kind or nature arising out of the performance of this Agreement to 
the extent that such liability is imposed on Housing Authority by the provisions of 
California Government Code Section 895.2 or other applicable law, and County 
shall defend at its expense, including attorney fees, Housing Authority and its 
officers, agents, employees and independent contractors in any legal action or 
claim of any kind based upon such alleged acts or omissions. 

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, County shall indemnify and hold 
Housing Authority and its officers, agents, employees and independent contractors 
free and harmless from any claim or liability whatsoever related to the condition of 
the title of any such housing unit acquired by Housing Authority pursuant to this 
Agreement, the condition of the unit itself, and/or the condition of the land that the 
unit is situated on, including, without limitation, any defects in any of the foregoing 
conditions (any such condition, a “Defective Condition”), and County shall (i) 
defend at its expense, including attorney fees, Housing Authority and its officers, 
agents, employees and independent contractors in any legal action or claim of any 
kind based upon any such Defective Condition, and (ii) accept all responsibility for 
any such Defective Condition, provided Housing Authority would otherwise have 



 

882/011706-0079 
12240282.2 a05/16/18 6  
 

such responsibility as a result of Housing Authority’s acquisition of the unit and/or 
ownership of fee title of the unit. 

9.2 By Housing Authority. Housing Authority shall indemnify and hold County 
and its officers, agents, employees and independent contractors free and harmless from 
any claim or liability whatsoever, based or asserted upon any act or omission of Housing 
Authority, its officers, agents, employees, volunteers, subcontractors, or independent 
contractors, for property damage, bodily injury or death, or any other element of damage 
of any kind or nature arising out of the performance of this Agreement to the extent that 
such liability is imposed on County by the provisions of California Government Code 
Section 895.2 or other applicable law, and Housing Authority shall defend at its expense, 
including attorney fees, County, its officers, agents, employees and independent 
contractors in any legal action or claim of any kind based upon such alleged acts or 
omissions. 

10. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any action between County and Housing Authority 
seeking enforcement of any of the terms and conditions to this Agreement, the prevailing 
party in such action shall be awarded, in addition to injunctive or other relief, its 
reasonable attorney’s fees. 

11. Interpretation.  This Agreement shall be construed according to its fair meaning, 
as if prepared by both parties hereto. 

12. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the internal laws of the 
State of California and any question arising hereunder shall be construed or determined 
according to such law.  The Superior Court of the State of California in and for the County 
of Santa Cruz, or such other appropriate court in such county, shall have exclusive 
jurisdiction of any litigation between the parties concerning this Agreement.   

13. Time is of Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and of each and 
every term and provision hereof. 

14. Waiver.  A waiver of a provision hereof, or modification of any provision herein 
contained, shall be effective only if said waiver or modification is in writing, and signed by 
both County and Housing Authority.  No waiver of any breach or default by any party 
hereto shall be considered to be a waiver of any breach or default unless expressly 
provided herein or in the waiver. 

15. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which, 
when this Agreement has been signed by both of the parties hereto, shall be deemed an 
original, and such counterparts shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

16. County Approvals and Actions.  County shall maintain authority of this Agreement 
and the authority to implement this Agreement through the County’s Planning Director.  
The Planning Director shall have the authority to make approvals, issue interpretations, 
waive provisions, negotiate and enter into amendments to this Implementation Agreement 
and/or negotiate and enter into implementing agreements or documents on behalf of 
County so long as such actions do not materially or substantially change the business 



 

882/011706-0079 
12240282.2 a05/16/18 7  
 

terms of this Agreement, or materially or substantially add to the costs incurred or to be 
incurred by County as specified herein. 

17. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement to the contrary, nothing in this Agreement is intended to create any third party 
beneficiaries to this Agreement, and no person or entity other than County and Housing 
Authority, and the permitted successors and assigns of either of them, shall be authorized 
to enforce the provisions of this Agreement.   

 

[End of Agreement – Signature page follows]



Attachment 3 

882/011706-0079 
12240282.2 a05/16/18   
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County and Housing Authority have executed this 
Agreement as of the date set forth above. 

 

 

Date:  June __, 2018 

 

 

“Housing Authority” 

Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz, 
a politic body, corporate and politic 
By: _____________________________ 
 Jenny Panetta 
Its: Executive Director 

 

 

 

Date:  June __, 2018 

 

“County” 

COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, a political 
subdivision of the State of California  

By:     
 Kathleen Molloy 
Its: Planning Director 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
RUTAN & TUCKER, LLP 

 
By:    
        Allison LeMoine-Bui  
        Special Counsel to County 

 

 

 



















 AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
MEETING DATE: May 23, 2018  ITEM NUMBER:  6D 
 
       FROM:      Executive Director   
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Low Income Public Housing Utility Consumption   
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Discussion  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
 
During the Board’s review of the 2016-2017 audited financials, the Board had questions 
regarding utility costs and consumption at our Low Income Public Housing Properties.  Below 
are tables summarizing information about LIPH utility costs, and utility consumption.  Although 
consumption of most utilities is generally trending down, rates continue to increase, leading to 
increased costs.   
 
LIPH Utility Costs 
Utility 2015-2016 2016-2017 % change 
Water $83,211 $102,061 23% 
     Tenant Water $60,956 $63,622 4% 
     Common Water $22,255 $38,439 73% 
Electricity $36,766 $40,285 10% 
Gas $6,602 $7,676 16% 
Sewer $98,520 $102,715 4% 
 
LIPH Utility Consumption 
Utility 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 
Water* (unit = 748 gallons) 17,628  18,589  14,902 11,903 16,245 
Electricity (kwh) 147,883 146,494 151,648 143,725 142,700 
Gas (therms) 7,448 6,500 5,921 5,782 5,495 
*Water consumption information includes both tenant water and common water. 
 
Water – LIPH units are individually metered to track water usage of each unit and to bill tenants 
for their water usage.  All LIPH units have low flow toilets, and water saving devices on the 
shower heads and sinks.  Every year we work with our landscaping company to ensure that our 
irrigation is operating as efficiently as possible.  When we re-landscape a site we try to use as 
many drought tolerant plants as possible.  Water rates have been increasing.  The City of Santa 
Cruz has implemented a water rate increase of 10% per year for five years starting in 2014.  For 
2017-2018, the City of Watsonville has implemented at 14% water rate increase.    
 



Please note that water rationing was not in effect for 2016-2017. Once water rationing was no 
longer in effect, water consumption increased.  In 2015-2016 our LIPH sites used 11,903 units of 
water verses 16,245 units in 2016-2017.  This represents a 36% increase in overall water usage.   
It should be noted that the 73% increase in common water expense from 2015-2016 to 2016-
2017 was due to price increases from the various water departments combined with an increase 
in landscaping irrigation usage.  During the drought, Stage 3 water restrictions were in place, and 
we severely cut back on watering our landscaping at all of our sites.  Once the water restrictions 
were lifted, we resumed watering our landscaping.      
 
Electricity – As units turn over or as we make repairs we are retro fitting all of the interior light 
fixtures with LED fixtures.   Recently, we retrofitted all of the exterior lights at one of our LIPH 
complexes and found the lighting to be acceptable by the tenants and HA staff.   In the coming 
months, we will be looking to retrofit all of our LIPH complexes with new LED lighting.   There 
is a program that is sponsored by PG&E that allows for the retro fitting of old light fixtures to 
LED and allowing a portion of the expense to be amortized over a period of time interest fee.   
We will be looking to see if we qualify for this program when we do our exterior lighting 
upgrades. We only purchase and install energy efficient appliances in all of our units.  During 
our last contract negotiations with our laundry vendor, we upgraded all of our machines to all be 
energy efficient.   
 
Solar – HA staff is exploring the feasibility of installing solar on our LIPH buildings.  The 
primary challenge is that by doing so, the HA would have to take over all of the PG&E electrical 
accounts and bill back the tenants. We have experience with this process with our individual 
water meters, and subsequent water billing, and have found this to be a very time consuming 
process.  Many tenants are slow in paying their water bills, pay only a portion of the amount due, 
or dispute the billing.   This reconciling of water billing accounts is very laborious. Based on this 
experience, we anticipate that billing tenants for electricity usage would also be similarly 
challenging and labor intensive. HA staff will continue to investigate this matter to evaluate 
practices at other LIPH and affordable housing sites look for ways to make solar energy work for 
our sites.   
  
Tankless Water Heaters – Previously, tankless water heaters were not able to be installed in our 
LIPH units due to the construction requirements for them. An example of this was that they 
require a ¾ inch gas line, currently all of our LIPH units are plumbed with ½ inch gas lines.  
Recently, a new tankless water heater has been brought to market that might allow us to replace 
old water heaters when they are in need of replacement. It is estimated that tenants might be able 
to save between $70 and $100 per year on their gas bill if tankless water heaters were installed.  
We are currently working with a plumbing contractor on this matter.   
 
Gas – Currently, the only gas that is used at our LIPH sites is for heating, cooking, hot water and 
our laundry dryers. The gas expense shown above is only used in the operation of our laundry 
rooms.  Each laundry room has a gas water heater and gas dryers. We have 11 laundry rooms in 
total. When a heater fails or needs to be replaced in a LIPH unit, we purchase the most energy 
efficient model we can.   
 



Sewer  - Sewer rates are based on water usage/pricing which is set by the individual 
jurisdictions. There are several sites in Watsonville where the sewer bill is included in their water 
bill because the units have individual water meters.    
 
Additional Information - All of our sites have newer dual pane white vinyl windows, and all of 
our units are insulated and have weather stripping around the doors.  In the coming months, we 
will be conducting an energy audit at all of our sites as required by HUD.  This energy survey 
will look for opportunities for further conservation within our units and complexes.  They will 
make suggestions in areas of lighting, appliances, weatherization, etc.  Once that report is 
completed we will evaluate their suggestions and implement the items we can.    
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Discussion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
 



 AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
MEETING DATE: May 23, 2018   ITEM NUMBER:    8 
 
        FROM: Executive Director   
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Executive Director’s Report – May 23, 2018 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Discussion 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
 
Please call or e-mail me with questions you might have on any of the Agenda Items for the May 23, 
2018 meeting.  I would be happy to give you additional background or answer any of your questions in 
advance of the meeting. My direct line is 454-5931 and my email address is 
jennyp@hacosantacruz.org. 
 
Financial Reports:  Your packets today include our monthly unaudited financial reports which show 
revenue and expenses through April 2018 and a comparison against our approved budget(s) for FY 
2017-18. 
 
FMR Study:  The Housing Authority has begun working with Applied Survey Research to conduct an 
updated FMR study with the goal of submitting the study in time for HUD’s early July deadline.  The 
study will cost approximately $25,000, and will be conducted utilizing telephone surveys.  Letters have 
been sent to affordable housing developers as well as to the jurisdictions to invite interested parties to 
share in the cost of the study.   
 
Office Move:  The tenant improvements at the two office buildings are going well.   The contractor 
anticipates being completed with their work by June 12, 2018 (on schedule per original contract).  
Once this work is completed, we will have the office cubes installed.   At this point, we are planning a 
move date of Wednesday, July 11, 2018.   The office would be closed on that Wednesday, Thursday 
and Friday, and we would plan to reopen on July 16th.    Movers have been scheduled here at our 
Mission Street office on Wednesday, July 11th and expect to start moving our office furniture and 
belongings over to the new buildings.   Staff is very excited about the move as it will decrease the 
commute time for a vast majority of our employees.   Our new central office location will also be of 
great benefit to most of our clients, allowing us to be more easily accessible to the community we 
serve. 
 



Watsonville Dropbox and Briefings:  In an effort to improve Agency access to South County 
residents while we searched for a mid-County location, the Housing Authority established a 
Watsonville Document Dropbox in the Watsonville Library, and began conducting voucher briefings 
in Watsonville on a monthly basis.  Over time, these efforts have become challenging.  While the 
Housing Authority dropbox at the library has adequate signage, library patrons sometimes confuse the 
library’s book dropbox with the Housing Authority document dropbox, and vice versa.  Additionally, 
community members have been directing Housing Authority questions to library staff.  Watsonville 
briefings have also been challenging.  On multiple occasions, the audio/visual equipment has not been 
available or operational, making the presentation difficult.  Additionally, when we do not conduct 
briefings onsite, we do not have access to copy machines which are occasionally needed.  Finally we 
have had several instances of individuals showing up at the wrong location.  Based on these 
experiences, we propose to discontinue use of the Watsonville dropbox and Watsonville briefing 
presentations once we have moved to our mid-County office location. 
 
Landlord Survey:  The Housing Authority has recently sent a letter to all landlords participating in 
the voucher program, to thank them for participation, to highlight landlord benefits of the program, and 
to solicit feedback through a landlord survey.  The landlord survey will provide information we can 
use to further improve landlord’s experience with the voucher program.  I will share the results of the 
landlord survey with the Board when they are available. 
 
NAHRO Commissioner Training Opportunity:  The National Association of Housing and 
Redevelopment Officials (NAHRO) is holding its summer conference in San Francisco, from July 27-
29.  During the conference, two PHA commissioner training opportunities will be available, including 
sessions on Commissioner Fundamentals, and Commissioners Guide to Monitoring & Oversight.  I 
would encourage any Commissioner who is interested and available to consider attending.  Information 
about the conference, including commissioner training, is available 
here   http://www.nahro.org/summerconference.  Please contact Courtney Byrd if you are interested in 
attending. 
 
Legislative Update:  After a disappointing draft budget from the Trump Administration proposing 
deep cuts, the House Appropriations T-HUD subcommittee recently released its draft 2019 
appropriations bill, proposing level funding in most areas (including Low Income Public Housing, 
Family Self Sufficiency, and administrative fees) with slight increases to other areas, including a 
proposed 2.6% increase for the HCV program and a 1% increase for homeless assistance grants.  The 
Senate’s T-HUD committee is expected to release their proposed 2019 appropriations bill in early 
June.  Historically, the Senate versions of these proposed appropriations bills are more favorable for 
housing programs than the House versions. 
 
 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
 

http://www.nahro.org/summerconference


HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ
BUDGET COMPARISON REPORTS

10 months, or 83%, into our fiscal year.  The total of all revenue, excluding HAP
reimbursements, is 78% of total budgeted, while HAP is 80% of the amount budgeted. 
Total expenses, excluding HAP payments, are 74% of the amount budgeted.

The agency as a whole is experiencing a year-to-date surplus of $461,825 due mainly
to capital expenditures being well under budget. The surplus and deficit by program
group are as follows:

Section 8 Programs $155,874 Vouchers, Mod Rehab & Mob Rehab SRO
Federal Housing Programs 321,332 LIPH and USDA
Federal Grants (28,770)        Shelter + Care, FSS, Transitional Hsg
State Grants 8,407           Migrant Center & MCCs
Local Programs 6,272 Eligibilities, Security Deposits, Tech Asst
Administrative Services (1,291) Includes 41st Ave. & Mission St. rents

$461,825

The individual programs which show a year to date loss are:
41st Ave Office Building ($83,523)

($38,710)
($609) (Administrative salary expenses exceed contract funds)
($716) (Administrative salary expenses exceed contract funds)

(41st Ave related construction costs)

May 23, 2018

City of Santa Cruz

Attached you will find the year to date reports as of April 30, 2018, which takes us 

County Home Grant

(Calendar year 2017 grant funds fully expended)FSS



Page 2

April 2018

2017-2018 2017-2018
Year Annual Budget Budget

to Date Budget Utilized Remaining 
Revenues:
HAPS / Program 50,703,606 63,701,104 80% 20%
Administrative Fees 3,779,867 4,764,236 79% 21%
Grants / Contracts 1,946,917 2,621,675 74% 26%
Rental Income 2,180,612 2,604,412 84% 16%
Operating Transfers In 359,193 647,962 55% 45%
Other Income 217,063 242,835 89% 11%

Total Revenues: 59,187,258 74,582,224 79% 21%

Expenses:
Housing Assistance Pmts 50,703,606 63,691,104 80% 20%
Salaries 2,858,747 3,742,613 76% 24%
Employee Benefits 1,137,534 1,570,319 72% 28%
Capital Purchases 688,867 1,507,375 46% 54%
Maintenance 1,285,332 1,376,586 93% 7%
General Administrative 980,032 1,194,115 82% 18%
Tenant Services 377,189 756,870 50% 50%
Operating Transfers Out 510,416 440,963 116% -16%
Debt Service 183,710 220,491 83% 17%

Total Expenses: 58,725,433 74,500,436 79% 21%

Net Income (Loss): 461,825 81,788 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ
Budget Comparison - All Funds

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018



Page 3

April 2018

2017-2018 2017-2018
Year Annual Budget Budget

to Date Budget Utilized Remaining 
Revenues:
HAPS / Program      50,284,830      63,255,736 79% 21%
Administrative Fees        3,726,645        4,700,046 79% 21%
Grants / Contracts                     -                    136 0% 100%
Rental Income                     -                       -   0% 0%
Operating Transfers In                     -                       -   0% 0%
Other Income             13,067             19,487 67% 33%

Total Revenues:      54,024,542      67,975,405 79% 21%

Expenses:
Housing Assistance Pmts      50,284,830      63,255,736 79% 21%
Salaries        2,132,286        2,778,279 77% 23%
Employee Benefits           846,690        1,184,032 72% 28%
Capital Purchases                     -                       -   0% 0%
Maintenance             27,576             33,816 82% 18%
General Administrative           577,288           607,155 95% 5%
Tenant Services                     -                       -   0% 0%
Operating Transfers Out                     -                       -   0% 0%
Debt Service                     -                       -   0% 0%

Total Expenses: 53,868,668 67,859,018 79% 21%

Net Income (Loss): 155,874 116,387 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018

Budget Comparison - Section 8



Page 4

April 2018

2017-2018 2017-2018
Year Annual Budget Budget

to Date Budget Utilized Remaining 
Revenues:
HAPS / Program                     -                       -   0% 0%
Administrative Fees                     -                       -   0% 0%
Grants / Contracts           517,906           512,951 101% -1%
Rental Income        1,762,133        2,031,210 87% 13%
Operating Transfers In           353,249           580,062 61% 39%
Other Income           158,374           173,260 91% 9%

Total Revenues:        2,791,661        3,297,483 85% 15%

Expenses:
Housing Assistance Pmts                     -                       -   0% 0%
Salaries           522,643           692,039 76% 24%
Employee Benefits           200,880           268,328 75% 25%
Capital Purchases           349,999           872,225 40% 60%
Maintenance           924,204           980,749 94% 6%
General Administrative           306,328           398,420 77% 23%
Tenant Services                    39                  250 16% 84%
Operating Transfers Out           149,109             55,950 267% -167%
Debt Service             17,126             20,591 83% 17%

Total Expenses: 2,470,329        3,288,553 75% 25%

Net Income (Loss): 321,332               8,930 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ
Budget Comparison - Federal Housing

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018



Page 5

April 2018

2017-2018 2017-2018
Year Annual Budget Budget

to Date Budget Utilized Remaining 
Revenues:
HAPS / Program           418,776           445,368 94% 6%
Administrative Fees                     -                       -   0% 0%
Grants / Contracts           494,638           585,073 85% 15%
Rental Income             18,492             20,737 89% 11%
Operating Transfers In                     -               17,900 0% 100%
Other Income               1,077               1,845 58% 42%

Total Revenues:           932,983        1,070,923 87% 13%

Expenses:
Housing Assistance Pmts           418,776           435,368 96% 4%
Salaries           100,842           131,134 77% 23%
Employee Benefits             51,299             64,806 79% 21%
Capital Purchases                     -               17,900 0% 100%
Maintenance             18,905             29,142 65% 35%
General Administrative               4,903               9,838 50% 50%
Tenant Services             11,666             33,334 35% 65%
Operating Transfers Out           355,362           385,013 92% 8%
Debt Service                     -                       -   0% 0%

Total Expenses: 961,753 1,106,535 87% 13%

Net Income (Loss): (28,770) (35,612)

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ
Budget Comparison - Federal Grants

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018



Page 6

April 2018

2017-2018 2017-2018
Year Annual Budget Budget

to Date Budget Utilized Remaining 
Revenues:
HAPS / Program                     -                       -   0% 0%
Administrative Fees                  875               1,250 70% 30%
Grants / Contracts           518,794           726,906 71% 29%
Rental Income                     -                       -   0% 0%
Operating Transfers In                     -                       -   0% 0%
Other Income               8,977             15,120 59% 41%

Total Revenues:           528,647           743,276 71% 29%

Expenses:
Housing Assistance Pmts                     -                       -   0% 0%
Salaries             53,370             70,660 76% 24%
Employee Benefits             22,149             30,820 72% 28%
Capital Purchases           174,783           335,250 52% 48%
Maintenance           216,579           193,381 112% -12%
General Administrative             53,358             97,107 55% 45%
Tenant Services                     -                       -   0% 0%
Operating Transfers Out                     -                       -   0% 0%
Debt Service                     -                       -   0% 0%

Total Expenses: 520,240 727,219 72% 28%

Net Income (Loss): 8,407 16,057 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ
Budget Comparison - State Grants

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018



Page 7

April 2018

2017-2018 2017-2018
Year Annual Budget Budget

to Date Budget Utilized Remaining 
Revenues:
HAPS / Program                     -                       -   0% 0%
Administrative Fees               5,063               9,080 56% 44%
Grants / Contracts           415,579           796,609 52% 48%
Rental Income                     -                       -   0% 0%
Operating Transfers In               5,944                     -   0% 0%
Other Income                  308                  550 56% 44%

Total Revenues:           426,894           806,239 53% 47%

Expenses:
Housing Assistance Pmts                     -                       -   0% 0%
Salaries             31,680             48,158 66% 34%
Employee Benefits             10,410             15,340 68% 32%
Capital Purchases                     -                       -   0% 0%
Maintenance                  249                  325 77% 23%
General Administrative               6,854               7,266 94% 6%
Tenant Services           365,484           723,286 51% 49%
Operating Transfers Out               5,944                     -   0% 0%
Debt Service                     -                       -   0% 0%

Total Expenses: 420,622 794,375 53% 47%

Net Income (Loss): 6,272 11,864 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ
Budget Comparison - Local Programs

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018



Page 8

April 2018

2017-2018 2017-2018
Year Annual Budget Budget

to Date Budget Utilized Remaining 
Revenues:
HAPS / Program                     -                       -   0% 0%
Administrative Fees             47,284             53,860 88% 12%
Grants / Contracts                     -                       -   0% 0%
Rental Income           399,987           552,465 72% 28%
Operating Transfers In                     -               50,000 0% 100%
Other Income             35,259             32,573 108% -8%

Total Revenues:           482,530           688,898 70% 30%

Expenses:
Housing Assistance Pmts                     -                       -   0% 0%
Salaries             17,925             22,343 80% 20%
Employee Benefits               6,105               6,993 87% 13%
Capital Purchases           164,086           282,000 58% 42%
Maintenance             97,820           139,173 70% 30%
General Administrative             31,302             74,328 42% 58%
Tenant Services                     -                       -   0% 0%
Operating Transfers Out                     -                       -   0% 0%
Debt Service           166,584           199,900 83% 17%

Total Expenses: 483,821 724,737 67% 33%

Net Income (Loss): (1,291) (35,839)

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ
Budget Comparison - Administrative Services

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018



Pajaro Valley farmworker families need 
housing, report says 

Two young girls play on the walkway at the Buena Vista Migrant Center in Watsonville in 
August 2017. Under the state’s ‘50 mile rule,’ families must move more than 50 miles away 
from the subsidized centers for three months out of the year to be eligible to return. (Dan Coyro -
- Santa Cruz Sentinel file)  

By Jondi Gumz, Santa Cruz Sentinel  

Posted: 05/14/18, 7:40 PM PDT | Updated: 6 hrs ago  

Farmworker Housing Action Plan 

Goal: Produce 5,300 permanent affordable farmworker housing units in Salinas and Pajaro 
Valley region during the next five years. 

Prioritize farmworker families: Consider modular housing; include child care. 

Seasonal workers: Repurpose buildings; use motels and relax maximum 30-day stay rule; 
consider mobile housing. 

http://www.santacruzsentinel.com/marketplace/20180514/pajaro-valley-farmworker-families-need-housing-report-says#author1
htsax0t3chtps://www.cityofsalinas.org/our-city-services/community-development/regional-farmworker-housing-study


Strategies: Create public-private partnerships, map potential sites, modify zoning when needed; 
create city-county agreements for contiguous unincorporated county land to connect to city 
infrastructure; enable contiguous property owners with suitable sites to create new lot lines for 
larger projects; encourage land trusts to build farmworker housing on land leased from the trust. 

Regulatory reform: Allow employers to fund housing; designate ombudsman to shepherd 
applications through approval process; charge fees based on square footage to reduce fees for 
small units. 

Source: Regional farmworker housing action plan 

SANTA CRUZ >> Farmworker families employed in the $5 billion-a-year ag sector in the 
Salinas and Pajaro valleys are doubling and tripling up to keep their housing costs affordable, 
according to a report that is spurring stakeholders in Santa Cruz and Monterey counties to meet 
Wednesday in Salinas to discuss solutions. 

The majority of local farmworkers are not migrant, but live in the area year-round, according to 
the 500-page report, supported by funding from both counties and based on a survey of 400 
farmworkers and interviews with 65 employers. 

Only 20 percent were “follow the crop” migrants, leading to a recommendation to prioritize 
permanent year-round housing for farmworker families. 

About 75 percent of farmworkers were married, many with children born in the U.S. Most had 
completed only primary grades.  

Median rent paid was $185 per person, with dozens reporting issues such as mold, insufficient 
heat or bathroom malfunctions. Median income was $25,000. 

About 89 percent rent, averaging seven people per dwelling compared to less than three people 
per dwelling in Santa Cruz County. Most lived with more than five people per bathroom as 
owners or renters sublease space in the living room or garage; one in five rented rooms without 
kitchens. 

To reduce crowding to county averages, the report calculated more than 3,500 farmworker 
housing units are needed. 

INDUSTRY AT RISK 

“It’s almost a crisis,” said Tom Broz, president of the Santa Cruz County Farm Bureau and 
an organic farmer for 23 years in Watsonville where he provides his employees with housing. 
“The industry is at risk here.” 

Agriculture is “the No. 1 economic engine in county,” Broz said. “The berry industry depends on 
a labor force that is year-round ... Raspberries, blackberries, strawberries — not one is 
mechanized.” 

htsax0t3chtps://www.cityofsalinas.org/our-city-services/community-development/regional-farmworker-housing-study
https://www.cityofsalinas.org/sites/default/files/departments_files/community_development_files/housing_report_salinas_pajaro_4-19-181.pdf
http://www.sccfb.com/
http://liveearthfarm.net/


Berries accounted for two-thirds of Santa Cruz County’s 2016 crop value. 

“If a farmer wants housing on his farm, there’s definitely a lot of hurdles,” Broz said. “How can 
we streamline that?”  

He would like advocates discussing a bond of up to $250 million on the Nov. 6 ballot for 
affordable housing to earmarks funds specifically for farmworker housing. 

The shift away from migrant farm work did not surprise Carolyn O’Donnell of the California 
Strawberry Commission in Watsonville. 

“We have a very long growing season,” she said, noting people coming to work in the fields tend 
to stay. 

Migrant farmworkers have particular challenges with housing. State-subsidized housing for 
farmworkers such as the Buena Vista Migrant Center in Watsonville requires that residents move 
more than 50 miles away for three months of the year to be eligible to live there. The report 
recommends investigating mobile homes for seasonal migrant workers. 

COUNTING WORKERS 

Accurate figures for farmworkers are not readily available because of the way government 
agencies collect data, the report’s authors at the California Institute for Rural Studies found. 

Government agencies collect data on ag workers on grower payrolls, which peaked at 80,714 in 
Monterey and Santa Cruz counties in 2016, but a monthly federal survey does not collect data on 
contract labor, which has been growing.  

Most farm labor contractors are based in Monterey County, which had 92 companies register and 
40,468 farm labor contract employees last year. The study found many companies also registered 
in Santa Cruz County and some registered out of state. 

The findings and more than 50 draft recommendations were aired last month in Salinas, with 
feedback resulting in a 12-page action plan to be discussed by subcommittee members 
Wednesday. 

COLLABORATION 

Jennifer Coile, a city of Salinas planner, is project manager for the farmworker housing study 
and action plan, is feeling positive. 

“People are very optimistic about the forum and the plan to work together and collaborate and 
move ahead,” she said, noting a recommendation to identify farmworker housing sites that could 
involve planners in the city of Watsonville and unincorporated Santa Cruz County. 

https://www.affordablehousingscc.org/
http://www.santacruzsentinel.com/lifestyle/20180406/affordable-housing-santa-cruz-county-eyes-250-million-bond
http://www.santacruzsentinel.com/lifestyle/20180406/affordable-housing-santa-cruz-county-eyes-250-million-bond
http://www.calstrawberry.com/en-us/
http://www.calstrawberry.com/en-us/
http://www.santacruzsentinel.com/article/NE/20170806/NEWS/170809763
http://www.santacruzsentinel.com/article/NE/20170806/NEWS/170809763
https://www.cityofsalinas.org/our-city-services/community-development/regional-farmworker-housing-study
https://www.cityofsalinas.org/our-city-services/community-development/regional-farmworker-housing-study


Suzi Merriam, Watsonville’s community development director, said much discussion has 
focused on building housing on agricultural parcels, and obstacles in Watsonville include land 
availability, land costs and construction costs. 

“We look forward to working with the affordable housing folks at the County of Santa Cruz as 
well as local farm owners on finding solutions both inside and outside the city limits,” she said. 

Jondi Gumz is an award-winning reporter covering Santa Cruz County business, housing and 
transportation. Reach the author at jgumz@santacruzsentinel.com or follow Jondi on 
Twitter: @jondigumz. 

mailto:jgumz@santacruzsentinel.com
http://twitter.com/jondigumz

	1-agenda5
	mins043018FINAL
	Secretary Panetta informed the Board that as a result of the major waiting list refresh conducted in 2017, as well as a high volume of vouchers issued in the past year, our waiting lists have been reduced significantly. It is likely that the Housing A...
	18:mins04

	5agit3b
	Natural 415
	5agit3c
	5agit3d
	Resolution No. 2018-06
	5agit3e
	Resolution No. 2018-07
	5agit6a
	4056_001_Redacted
	5agit6b
	5agit6c
	1 County 2018 Cover letter
	2 Attachment 1_Ammendment
	3 Attachment 2 _ 18-19 WorkPlan
	4 RLF Agreement_Attachment 3 v2
	5 ICA HACO and County of Santa Cruz 2011
	5agit6d
	5agit8
	April 2018 YTD Board Reports
	April 2018
	All funds- Summary
	Section 8
	Fed Housing
	Fed Grants
	State Grants
	Local Programs
	Admin Services

	Pajaro Valley farmworker families need housing
	Pajaro Valley farmworker families need housing, report says
	Farmworker Housing Action Plan
	INDUSTRY AT RISK
	COUNTING WORKERS
	COLLABORATION




	undefined: $6,737,580
	undefined_2: 
	undefined_3: 
	undefined_4: 
	undefined_5: 
	4: 
	and COUNTY: 
	undefined_6: 
	By: 
	By_2: 
	Address: 
	1: 
	2: 
	Telephone: 


